ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 31, 2011
3:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald d son, Chair
Senat or Thomas WAgoner
Senator Al bert Kookesh
Senat or Linda Menard

Senat or Johnny Ellis

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG
Comm ssioner - Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent
Susan Bel |

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA COASTAL MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER
SUSAN BELL, Conmi ssioner Designee
Department of Conmerce, Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent
( DCCED)
Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as candidate for confirmation as

comm ssioner of the Departnent of Comerce, Comunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent ( DCCED) .

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2011



JOSEPH BALASH, Deputy Comnmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Gave an overview of the current Al aska
Coast al Managenent Program

GARY W LLI AMS, Coastal District Coordinator

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a critique and offered suggestions on
the current Al aska Coastal Managenent Program

TOM LOHVAN, Attorney

North Sl ope Bor ough

Barrow, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a critique and offered suggestions on
the current Al aska Coastal Managenent Program

KATHY WASSERMAN, Executive Director

Al aska Muni ci pal League

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a critique and offered suggestions on
the current Al aska Coastal Managenent Program

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:34:25 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:34 p.m Present
at the call to order were Senators Menard, Wagoner, Kookesh and
Chair O son. Senator Ellis arrived shortly thereafter.

Confirmati on Hearing: Conm ssioner - Departnent of Conmerce,
Communi ty and Econom ¢ Devel opnent

3:34:46 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
to hear the confirmation hearing of Susan Bell for the position
as conmm ssioner of the Departnent of Commerce, Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED). He asked Ms. Bell to tell the
committee about her background and why she was chosen for this
position.

3:35:14 PM

SUSAN BELL, Comm ssioner Designee, Departnment of Conmerce,
Communi ty and Econom c¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), said prior to taking
this position she worked in the governor's office as a special
assistant. In this position she worked primarily w th DCCED, but

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 31, 2011



she also spent time with the Departnent of Revenue and the
Department of Administration. She said that this was a great
opportunity to becone famliar with sone of the issues and the
peopl e at DCCED. She expl ained that before that position she was
a principal of the MDowell Goup, a research and consulting
firm She said that the firm gave her the chance to work
statewide on issues that are directly relevant to the work in
her current position at DCCED. She noted that she was also able
to work with nunber of state agencies including the Departnent
of Commerce and the Departnment of Transportation. She said that
before this she worked as one of the vice presidents at Gol dbelt
| ncorporated. She explained that this was a unique opportunity
for her to work with an organization that was focused on
econom ¢ devel opnent, job creation and shareholder hire wthin
the context of the ANCSA [Alaska Native Cains Settlenent Act]
corporation. She noted that she also has a lot of business
managenent and marketing experiences and has |ived and worked
t hroughout the state.

3:37:42 PM

SENATOR WAGONER said Trout Unlimted, one of the Regional
Seaf ood Devel opnent Associations (RSDA) adm nistered by DCCED,
was given nmoney from the commercial salnon fisheries. He asked
how DCCED tracks this type of "gift" or "grant"”™ and how this
fits into to the overall goals of RSDA. He noted that Trout
Unlimted is an advocacy organization for environnmental issues
bot h nation and worl dw de.

COWMM SSI ONER BELL replied that this issue cane to the attention
of both the Division of Economi c  Devel opnent and the
comm ssioner's office last week. She concurred that DCCED has
regul atory and oversight responsibilities for these marketing
organi zations. She explained that the departnment is currently
talking directly with RSDA and the Departnent of Law (DOL) in
order to wunderstand what the expenditure was and what the
appropriate response should be. She said she would be happy to
report back to the comrmittee after the departnment has nade a
det erm nat i on.

SENATOR WAGONER sai d he woul d appreci ate seeing the report.

3:40: 15 PM
SENATOR MENARD r ecogni zed Commi ssioner Bell's acconplishnments.

SENATOR ELLIS said that he has sone constituents that were

involved with the statewi de head tax for the cruise industry. He
asked her to give the commttee an update on what is going on

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2011



with the cruise industry market in Al aska and whether sone
cruise lines have added ships since the rollback of the head
t ax.

COWM SSI ONER BELL replied that this year Disney Cruise Line and
Cceana Crui ses would be introduced and Crystal Cruise Line would

be returning. She explained that while this will introduce |ess
than 10, 000 passengers, they are very nuch welconed. She noted
that last fall Princess also announced that it would be

returning another cross-gulf ship in the sumer of 2012. She
stressed that with a cross-gulf ship there are greater economc
benefits for the state because many of these passengers spend
time in Alaska on their own or opt to purchase a cruise tour of
Al aska.

She added that when attending Cruise Shipping Mam wth the
governor a few weeks ago Hol |l and Anmerica announced that for 2012
it would be making some capacity increases, which would anount
to another 11,000 passengers. She noted that while this year's
passenger increase is quite small, 2012 will see an increase of
about 60,000 new passengers in the market. She acknow edged t hat
this is still a long way away from the 150,000 passengers that
Alaska lost in a two year period. She added that early research
from the Alaska Travel Industry Association (ATIA) shows an
increase in visitors for this sumrer.

3:44:21 PM

SENATOR ELLI S asked for confirmation that a ot of the follow up
was due to the worldw de econonic situation, as opposed to the
head tax. He noted that there were a nunber of cruise lines that
announced comng to Alaska when the state had the citizen-
i nspi red head tax.

COWM SSI ONER BELL agreed that the state and many businesses in
Al aska were affected by the econom c decline. She explained that
with the passage of the head tax ballot initiative there was, at
the time, a suite of nearly $70 mllion in new taxes and fees, a
rise in the environnmental standards, the inclusion of the Ccean
Ranger Program and a strong nessage sent to the cruise l|ine
i ndustry from Al askans. She said that the decline in passengers
was a conbination of these fees and the economic decline in
2009. She said that the recovery in the industry that the state
is now seeing is not just a role back in fees but also outreach

She remi nded the conmttee that the state was in a lawsuit wth
the cruise lines. She explained that the halt of the l|awsuit,
the increase in state marketing, the outreach to the industry,

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2011



and the changes that were nade |last year in the fee structure go
hand-in-hand in restoring the market.

SENATOR ELLIS noted that Al askans are generally proud of the
state's pristine waters and clean air and this is part of what
the cruise industry is marketing.

He asked, in the conversations that she and the governor had in
M am , whether they had the opportunity to ask the industry for
mar keti ng support that benefits nore than just the cruise ship
i ndustry.

COWMM SSI ONER BELL replied that the main nessage to both the main
del egates and in one-on-one small group neetings that the
governor had with cruise lines was about what Alaska is doing in
regards to marketing, the changes nade in the fee structure, and
the state's commitnent to high environnmental standards. She
explained that it was nore a nessage of outreach in order to
restore business and to welcone. She noted that she was
previously on the Alaska Tourism Mirketing Council as a
representative of Southeast Al aska Tourism Council. She said
Al aska's public private partnership has stood out.

SENATOR ELLIS asked if the cruise line industry offered to help
the state nonetarily with its marketing.

COWM SSI ONER BELL answered no; there was no voluntary offering.
She noted that the cruise line industry does participate as
nmenbers by purchasing ads and |abels that all businesses have
access to through the pay-to-play prograns.

3:50: 01 PM

SENATOR WAGONER said there has been an erosion of population in
rural areas over the last few years. He asked whether this is
still occurring.

COM SSI ONER BELL replied in the fall and winter of 2008 and
2009 there were high gas prices and a lot of nedia attention on
t he novement out of rural areas. She explained that during this
time the Rural Subcabinet was created, which analyzed fuel
costs, di stributions systens, and population trends. She
explained that these analyses showed that after the initial
spike in 2009, the novenent to and from the rural to urban
communities has becone nore fluid. She noted that conmunity
stability, safety, and economc viability are concerns. She
added that right now is a transition period as individuals
settle into their newy appointed roles. She said the Departnent

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2011



of Labor and Wrkforce Developnment and DCCED s Division of
Community and Regional Affairs (DCRA) staff have been focused on
the fresh census data since so nmuch of its funding fornulas are
based on population. She said "ultimately, it's not just to
measure the nunbers, it's to make sure that we get to our
m ssion of strong conmunities and a healthy and diverse econony
that allows people to stay in their hones."

3:52:42 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked what she sees the vision of DCCED being in the
future, especially with regard to rural Al aska.

COM SSIONER BELL replied that DCRA has recently grown and
strengthened in the past few years. She explained that one thing
she believes is inportant to do is strengthen and re-tool the
D vision of Economi c Devel opnent so that it can work hand-in-
hand with DCRA. She noted this has been a focus that preceded
her coming into the conmmssioner role. She said that she is
| ooking forward to working with DCCED s talented and dedi cated
staff in order to be as effective as possible in program
delivery and work coll aboratively across the departnent and with
ot her departnents. She expl ained that DCCED has the potential to
provi de | eadership for businesses and comunities and there is a
strong desire within the departnment to achieve that potential
fully.

CHAI R OLSON said he was rem nded by a previous comm ssioner that
"comm ssioners cone and comm ssioners go." He asked what she
hopes to acconplish during her tine.

COW SSIONER BELL replied that she feels the Division of
Econom ¢ Devel opnent shrunk over the past few years and this is
an area where a legacy could be built. She explained that |ast
year Al aska was ranked 50th out of 50 with regard to the state's
conpetitiveness. She said she believes that Al aska has so nmnuch
to offer in terms of its people, location, resources, and
i nnovation. Advancing Al aska is one of the key areas that she is
f ocused on.

3:56: 38 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked whether she sees DCCED expanding during her
time as commi ssioner. He explained that rural areas are largely
along the coastline of Alaska and involved and effected by the
Al aska Coastal Managenent Program (ACMP). He noted that there
has been a fair anount of dissatisfaction that has occurred
since 2003 with the program being under the Departnment of
Nat ural Resources (DNR). He explained that as policy nmakers,

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2011



| egi sl ators have | ooked into noving the program out of DNR and
putting it into another department, possibly DCCED. He asked her
to share her thoughts on this option.

COWM SSI ONER BELL said that she had not realized that DCCED had
been contenplated as a possible "home" for ACWP. She expressed
her conplinments to the efforts that have been nmade down to the
division director level. She explained that ACMP can draw on the
strengths of each state departnent and division. She noted that
great strides have been made, in a short anmount of time, to work
through many of the frustrations and ensure that comunities
have its funds. She said that she is not prepared to conment on
DCCED s ability to house ACWP.

Wth regard to Senator Oson's initial question about expanding
DCCED, she said the first thing that needs to be done is to ask:
"can we be nore effective with the resources that we have?" She
said that she believes the answer is "yes."

4:00: 15 PM
At ease from4:00 p.m to 4:02 p. m

4:02: 17 PM

SENATOR KOOKESH noved to forward the nane Susan Bell to the ful

| egislature sitting in joint session for a vote. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

4. 02: 26 PM
At ease from4:02 p.m to 4:03 p. m
Presentati on: Al aska Coastal Mnagenent Program

4:03:19 PM

CHAI R CLSON announced that the next order of business would be
to hear an overview of the Al aska Coastal Managenent Plan
(ACVMP). He noted that M. Balash was one of the main authors who
put the sunset provision into the program which will occur in
t he next coupl e of nonths.

4:04:14 PM
JOSEPH BALASH, Deputy Commi ssi oner, Departnment of Natura
Resources (DNR), said the governor submtted a bill requesting

an extension of ACMP. He l|listed some of the highlights of the
pr ogram

He explained that the federal structure for the programis the
Coastal Zone Managenent Act (CZMA), which allows states to

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2011



develop its own coastal program He noted that it is voluntary
on the part of states to inplenent it in one of three ways:

Technique A is a locally inplenmented program structure, such as
Oregon, where the state devel ops the standards and allows | oca
districts to inplenment and issue the permts and conditions.

Technique B is a state standardi zed program and there is no real
| ocal invol venent.

Technique C is a hybrid of technique A and B, where conmunities
are involved in the developnent of standards, planning, and
i ssuance of permts. He noted that the adoption of technique C
for inplenmentation is unique to Al aska.

He expl ained that the programin Alaska is a network program and
i s dependent upon coastal participation by |ocal communities. He
acknowl edged that a nunber of comunities and districts are
frustrated with the current process. He explained that the rules
for local participation are set out in statute and inplenented
t hrough regul ati ons.

4:08: 32 PM

MR. BALASH explained that there are a variety of comunities
around the state that have chosen to becone districts formally
under the program He noted that this is voluntary on the part
of the comunity.

He said the process for developing or anending a |ocal coasta
plan is lengthy and involves a trenmendous anmount of input and
cooment by all stakeholders. [Page 3 of the presentation
describes this process. Presentation included in the docunent
packet . ]

He highlighted the last row on page 3 in between box one and two
as an opportunity for nediation. He explained that this has been
used effectively by some communities and with inpasse in others.
He enphasi zed that the anmendnent process is |lengthy and can take
two to three years to conplete. He noted that federal review and
approval is required as a part of that process before a |oca
plan is finalized. He explained that the nost inportant part of
the coastal district plan approval is the enforceable conponents
of the plan. These incl ude:

« Enforceable policies
» Designated areas
* Maps of where the designated areas are |ocated

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2011



He expl ained that the enforceable policies are governed by a set
of statutes and regulations and that these requirenents were a
large part of the legislation that was considered by the
| egislature and adopted in 2003. He highlighted sonme of these
policies, an exanple being that a local policy cannot address a
matter that is adequately addressed by state or federal |law He
explained that the use of the word "adequately” results in a
subj ective determ nation nade by an individual as to whether or
not a state or federal regulation governing the particular
resource or policy in question already exists. The adequacy of
this is determined, in this case, by DCOM [Division of Coasta
and GCcean Managenent] in consultation wth the respective
agency. He noted that a nunber of districts have been frustrated
by that determ nation process and are seeking to renove that
particul ar | anguage.

He explained that with regard to designated areas, a community
can develop or select a designated area where |ocal enforceable
policy can apply. He noted that a designated area is inportant
because when an enforceable policy is devel oped on a |ocal |evel
it becomes an additional set of requirenents that a project
sponsor or developer has to nmeet in order to nove forward with
that activity in the coastal zone. He noted that a designated
area does not require a local enforceable policy, but it gives
the community deference in the consistency review process even
when relying on the state's standards, rather than its own.

4:14: 37 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked how many designated areas exist with approved
pl ans.

MR. BALASH replied that he believes there are two districts
wi t hout approved plans and 70 percent of the designated area
requests were approved in the planning process. He said he did
not know what that nunmber is but he could get it for the
conmittee.

He expl ained that the maps that reflect the designated areas are
an inportant part of the local plan. This is because it's
important for individuals operating in a coastal zone to know
whet her they are in a designated area and which policies wl
apply to their activity.

He said that there are a nunber of overlapping rules and

guidelines in statute; wthin regulations the particulars get
nore specific. Slide 5 was a diagram of the District Enforceable

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- March 31, 2011



Policy Decision Tree, which was developed by DCOM in order to
assi st conmunities in understandi ng how these decisions are nmade
when a local policy is brought forward. He acknow edged that it
is difficult to have a local enforceable policy approved under
the current ACMP process. He explained that part of the reason
for this is because the ACMP is only one part of a conprehensive
regul atory system in the state where a nunber of agencies are
already protecting air, water, and resource standards in the
state.

4:17: 35 PM

MR. BALASH continued that after a l|ocal plan has been approved,
the application and inplenentation of those policies conmes next.
He explained that this occurs only during the consistency review
process. Coastal districts receive inplenentation funding from
the federal government as part of CZMA in order to conduct
consi stency revi ews.

He noted that costal districts are considered to have expertise
in the interpretation of its plan. He explained that this
beconmes inportant at a particular stage of the review process in
the event that consensus does not energe anong the review ng
entities. He added that coastal districts can coment on a
proposed project using its local plan or the state's standards.

Slide 7 laid out the review process and how it affects projects
and activities. He remnded the commttee that the review
process involves the applicant, the affected coastal district,

state and federal agencies, and the public. The review process
is designed to evaluate projects and protect and nmanage coasta

uses and resources, while addressing an applicant's project. He
explained that this process is not neant to be a straight
forward "yes" or "no" on whether a project should occur or nove
forward. He explained that it's intended to "nassage" a project
in order to get it into conpliance with the coastal nanagenent
program at the begi nning of the process.

MR. BALASH went over the review process steps wth the
commttee. The first step is to determne the applicability of
ACMP to a project. He explained that if an activity or project
is occurring in the coastal zone in Alaska and requires state or
federal authorization and it is located in the coastal zone on
federal lands or the outer continental shelf (OCS) then ACMP may

apply.

He continued that after applicability has been determ ned, DCOM
offers pre-review assistance before the review actually starts

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- March 31, 2011



He expl ained that once an application is conplete, it is brought
into DNR and the agency has to have all copies of permt
appl i cations.

He explained that the information in the application is used by
DCOM to determne the scope of the review The scope of the
review is determined by the type of project. He noted that the
scope of the project could include |owinpact activities as well
as maj or devel opnents.

He added that the coordinating agency is determned by the
activities involved. He explained that nore often than not DCOM
is the coordinating agency to conduct the review, however,
sonetines that is not the case.

4:24:14 PM

MR. BALASH continued that after the scope is determ ned, DCOMV
prepares the notice for public comrent to be published in three
public places. Included in the notice is information about the
project, comment deadlines and any mlestones dictated by a
project. He explained that at the end of all of these steps,
"Day 1" has started.

Day 1 begins the review process. He noted that there are two
types of reviews: a 30 day review and a 50 day review He
expl ained that some of the nore involved projects, which have
certain federal authorizations, require the |longer review
peri od.

On Day 13/25 review participants can request additional
information and a designated area within scope of that review
He gave an exanple of a designated area request.

Day 17/30 is the deadline for public comments. He noted that all
of the review participants may submt comrents, which nust be
received by the deadline, in witing, and include an explanation
on whether the participant concurs with consistencies or if they
have considered it to be inconsistent. He said that if it is
i nconsistent, the participant needs to identify the enforceable
policies that the project is inconsistent with, explain why, and
propose alternative. He noted that this is an inportant el enment.

He continued that after the coment period has ended DCOM
coll ects and considers what those coments reflect. He explained
that regardless of whether or not a given community has
coomented or has an approved plan, the goal is to find
consensus. He noted that in the cases where consensus is not

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2011



clear in the comments, DCOM can convene a hearing in an attenpt
to resolve issues and facilitate sonme dialogue. He explained
that where there are differences the division attenpts to | ook
to and provide deference to the coments of the local district
or the agency that has expertise on the issue that is in
conflict.

4:28: 25 PM

MR. BALASH continued with his presentation. He said on Day 24/44
DCOM proposes a determination of consistency, describes whether
or not consistency has been achieved, and, if not, what
alternative neasures are required by the applicant to achieve
consistency. He noted that at this point the applicant has sone
options: adopt the alternative neasures, nodify the project, or
abandon the project and withdraw their application. Additionally
at Day 29/49 there is an opportunity for a decision on
consistency to be elevated to the comm ssioner of DNR This can
be brought forward by the applicant or the effected coastal
resource district. He noted that elevations are handled as
qui ckly possible, however, the statutes require conpletion in 45
days with a final decision determ ned on day 30/50. He said that
expedited reviews do exist and are achieved through a list of
permts that are routine or generally consistent with associated
activities in a given area (the "ABC list").

He explained that while the admnistration is pleased with the
program and wants to extend it for another six years, it is
understood that there is a desire on the part of communities and
their legislators to anend the statutes. He explained that with
this in mnd, Conmmssioner Sullivan [with DNR] worked with the
governor to develop sone guiding principles in order to engage
constructively in the legislative process. He said that what is
inmportant to the admnistration, and will guide its engagenent
and decision nmking, are that a predictable process nust be
mai ntai ned for conducting the consistency reviews, a strong
state program nust be nmamintained, and the standards and
enforceable policies nmust remain objective and cannot duplicate
or redefine existing authorities. He said that coastal districts
should be afforded a neaningful role for input, but should not
possess a veto decision over these projects.

4:31:50 PM

GARY WLLIAMS, Coastal District Coordinator, Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough, explained that the borough believes ACWMP serves an
inportant role in nonitoring devel opnment and could becone nore
meani ngful with revised and inproved legislation. He said that
the current nodel needs to be reviewed in order to make sure it

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2011



is serving the best interest of the state, its political
subdi vi sions, and industry. He said he believes that the program
can be enhanced with a few adjustnents.

He suggested that with regard to enforceable policy, to focus on
AS 46.40. He said that within this statute coastal districts are

di sallowed enforceable policy if a mtter is "adequately
addressed” in state and federal law. He explained that the
definition of "adequately addressed", in the borough's

experience, is what DNR "says it is" and it needs to either be
removed or reworked.

He continued that within AS 46.40 many district policies have
been disall owed because the policy did not "flow from specific
state or federal law. He said that the concept of "flow front
should be removed from the enforceable policy evaluation or
additionally state that if a particular state or federal |aw
does not address a | ocal concern, which the |ocal governing body
believes to be inportant, then the policy should be accept ed.

He said that, finally, AS 46.40 requires that if a coastal
district finds that a specific coastal wuse is of "unique

concern,” it mnust be denonstrated through 1|ocal usage or
scientific evi dence. He expl ai ned t hat t he | evel of
docunentation that DNR requires, wth regard of scientific
evidence, is burdensone. He said that this term is highly

interpretable and he suggested that it be renpved from statute.

He noted that he will fax the commttee his conplete discussion
for review at another tine.

He explained that the admnistrative code that was devel oped
following the 2003 ACWMP legislation was nore restrictive than
what statute requires. The result has been that current
regul ation severely limts the ability for coastal districts to
obtain policy approval from DNR because the statew de standards
have narrowed or elimnated the purview of coastal districts
regardi ng certain coastal uses and resources, he said.

He stressed that a few fixes to the statute with the regard to
adm nistrative code will help make ACWMP nore neaningful as an
adjunct to state agency oversight. He encouraged the Senate to
pass a six year extension to ACWP.

4:36:31 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked if the renpval or reworking of the "adequately
addressed” and "unique concern” portions of AS 46.40 wll

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -13- March 31, 2011



decrease frustration of districts whose plans are being
rej ect ed.

MR. WLLIAVS replied that he believes so and that it will also
help DNR. He explained that it is a wn-win for DNR in its
ability to try to help districts create policies that are
consistent with state law and will help districts understand why
it may not get a policy.

CHAIR OLSON asked what his thoughts are in reestablishing the
policy council that was elimnated in 2003.

MR. WLLIAMS replied that he is hopeful that the council can be
reestablished. He explained that it has been difficult to work
with an agency that both wites and interprets the rules. He
said that having a policy board that helps nediate the issues
for both sides would be a great adjunct to the program

4:38:40 PM

TOM LOHMAN, Attorney, North Slope Borough, stressed that he
believes the state's long-term best interests are served by the
continuation and anendnent of the current ACMP in order to
restore a nmeaningful role in the program for coastal districts.
He explained that it is inportant to dispel some of the
persistent myths that surround ACVMP in order to seek inportant
and necessary changes after the crippling anmendnents that were
adopted in 2003.

He explained that, first, the constituents that |egislators
represent are not anti-developnment and ACMP is not an anti-
devel opnent program He noted that districts have never sought
veto-authority over developnent projects; nor have districts
tried to usurp state or federal authority or inpinge upon the
separation of powers between branches or |evels of governnent.
He said that there are no facts to back up any of these false
clainms, despite these nyths being repeated at |egislative
hearings. He stressed that the North Slope Borough is as
dependent on a healthy oil and gas industry as the state is as a
whole, in order to maintain quality of life of the people and
provi de essential provisions to the comunity. He enphasized
that ACMP could be a developnent program which provides a
meani ngful role for comunities in a coordinated project review
process. He said the only thing districts want is to be able to
work with project applicants and agencies and influence project
designs that draw on | ocal expertise and address |ocal concerns.
He opined that an ACMP which reflects a partnership between the
centralized state governnent and the communities across Al aska

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2011



woul d enhance the likelihood that projects would be permtted
nore snoothly. He noted that a conmmon thene districts have heard
recently fromthe state admnistration is that federal decision
makers should not inpose its will with respect to actions in
Al aska. He said "all we're asking for is the same neasure of
respect from our state governnment that our state governnent is
demandi ng fromthe federal governnent.™

He concluded by addressing sone of the topics that were
di scussed in earlier testinony and that DNR has testified on in
other forum He explained that, first, it has been said that
statewi de subsistence standard requires that projects avoid,
mnimze, or mtigate inpacts to subsistence. He explained that
this is not exactly true. The statew de standard doesn't give
alternative nmeasures for mtigation. This is a problem because
it means that an action nust be either approved or disapproved
and districts can't have the policies that it would |ike because
of this. He said that he thinks this is where the idea of "veto"
cones from He gave an exanple of sone policies in the North
Sl ope Borough that were rejected by the state because it used
| anguage to either allow or disallow certain activities.

He continued that, second, it has been stated that an area
designation is not needed in order to consider inpacts to
subsi stence. He explained that this isn't true; the subsistence
standard only applies if it is on an approved desi gnated area.

He said that, third, there has been testinony that what
districts have perceived as ever-changing standards and rules
t hroughout the |ast eight years have not really been changes in
standards, but nerely nore specific provisions by DNR He argued
that is also not true.

4. 43: 55 PM

MR. LOHMAN said that DNR has acknow edged that an unintended
consequence arose from the inability to make designations on
federal lands and waters. He explained that the North Slope
Borough is unable to apply subsistence policies in places such
as the NPRA [National Petroleum Reserve, Alaska] and the OCS
[Quter Continental Shelf] because of this. He explained that the
borough has effectively been <closed out from crafting
subsi stence policies in the areas that are of greatest concern
for the North Sl ope.

He continued that M. Balash also cited the opportunity for

districts to designate areas on the fly during the review as a
positive aspect of the current program He said that, to him

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 15- March 31, 2011



this seens to "fly in the face" of industry concerns and one of
DNR s guiding principles for engagenent: that the program is
predi ctabl e and standards are clear upfront.

Finally, he said that the admnistration and many industry
representatives, who have comented on this issue, have argued
that the six years enbodied in the bill introduced by the
governor this year are needed in order to have carefu

st akehol der deliberation to identify appropriate changes to
ACVMP. He explained that this is frustrating to hear, because
districts have, over the past eight years, engaged and spent
enornmous anmounts of noney and staff time participating in
wor kshops, mul ti - st akehol der  neeti ngs, program reeval uation
meetings, a federal review of the program a legislative audit,
and many hearings on ACMP. He suggested that the tine is now to
fix this program

4: 46: 34 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked if the legislature and the governor cone to an
i npasse and the programis allowed to sunset, what his thoughts
are.

MR. LOHVAN replied that he believes the North Slope's nmayor is
on record stating that if the program remains unchanged the
district has nothing to lose since it doesn't have a |ocal plan.
He noted that the idea that deference is paid to loca
communities my be the case elsewhere, but he has not
experienced it wth regard to the North Slope Borough. He
expl ained that the district has conducted three el evations since
t he 2003 anendnents and in each case not only were the views of
t he borough not adopted, but were paid virtually no attention in
the final decision of the comm ssioner [of DNR]. He gave an
exanple of how ACMP, if changed, could assist the district in
coordinating its reviews and concerns on devel opnent issues, in
order to expedite project permtting.

4:49: 06 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked what the m ni num changes are which need to be
done in order to make this program acceptable to individuals
t hroughout the state.

MR. LOHVAN replied that getting rid of the designated area
requi renent, which has costs districts an extraordi nary anount
of noney. He explained that the North Slope Borough had no idea
that the process would be so difficult or expensive and does not
acconplish the goals intended. He continued that doing away w th

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -16- March 31, 2011



the "adequately addressed” and "flowfronf requirenents is also
i mportant.

He said that bringing back sonmething simlar to the Coastal
Policy Council (CPC), which existed prior to 2003 would be a
very positive step. He acknow edged that there were sone issues
with the previous CPC, but recent discussions have addressed a
somewhat different makeup.

CHAI R OLSON asked what kind of makeup of the policy council he
would like to see. He noted that previously the nenbers had been
mai nl y governor desi gnees.

MR. LOHMAN replied that before 2003, the CPC was "stacked" in
favor of the local comunities, with local elected officials
from nine regions of the states and five state officials. He
explained that the problem with that system was that it often
included elected officials who did not have the necessary
expertise on various projects in their own area and other
districts. He said a conbination of representation from
districts, state agencies, and possibly other stake holders
woul d provide a balanced review for the approval of |ocal
district plans and policies.

CHAI R OLSON asked whether he is nore optimstic that issues can
be worked out with the new conm ssioner of DNR com ng on board.

MR, LOHWVAN replied that he has great respect for Comm ssioner
Sullivan and there are a |lot of good people who work at DNR and
DCOM He added that after eight years of work identifying the
concerns of districts the pieces are in place to nove forward.
He reiterated that communities are not trying to halt the
econony of the state. He pointed out that Randy Bates in DCOM
knows this program "better than anybody, and he knows how to fix
it better than anybody."

4:53:42 PM

KATHY WASSERMAN, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal League,
stated support for the extension of ACMP. She said the program
has been the cornerstone for nmany rmnunicipalities throughout the
years. Prior to 2003 she said "we did not realize that we were
actually a part of what the admnistration mght call the
instability of the program" She stressed that this isn't the
intent of nost municipalities.

She said that with regard to the sunset, ACWMP is the only
program that provides financial assistance to municipalities and

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2011



coastal districts and includes a regulatory framework that
allows districts to have a "seat at the table" in the managenent
decisions that affect coastal zones. She said as nmunicipalities
and districts "why would we not want to have a seat at that
t abl e?"

She said nost nunicipalities and districts have | ost nost of its
own enforceable policies and have been left with ones that are
so limting that the policies are ineffective. She noted that
this is the cornerstone of the programitself.

She continued that another issue that the Alaska Minicipality
League has is the Departnment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC)
carve-out. She explained that not permtting any enforceable
policies or comments that relate to air or water quality has
virtually elimnated nost of the neaningful participation in
ACWP, since alnost all coastal uses relate to air or water
quality. DEC, as a rule, does not communi cate wth
muni ci palities and coastal districts and the departnment should
be brought back into the ACVP review process.

4:55:45 PM

M5. WASSERMAN said that requiring any physical area, subject to
ei ther subsistence or habitat enforceable policy, which nust be
pre-desi gnated before any inpacts to coastal resources or uses
can be considered, ignores the reality that resources and
habitats occur throughout the entire coastal area, nany of which
are mgratory. She stressed that this regulation should be
el i m nat ed.

She said that another issue is consultants. She explained that
DCOM has a policy of not allowing coastal districts or
nmuni ci palities to hire consultants to assist l|ocal districts
using the [Section] 306 funding. She enphasized that this should
be a |ocal decision, and should not be an issue so long as the
work required by the state is conpl eted.

She said that nmunicipalities and districts that choose to
participate is this program have always tried to balance
responsi bl e developnent wth the protection of the coastal
environment. She explained that municipalities are eager to
return to the table and participate in a reenergized and
coordinated review process, which has been lost since the
"stream i ned ACMP process” was inpl enented.

She expressed surprise that so many people think that
muni ci palities want to stop developnent. The nore rural the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 18- March 31, 2011



community, the nore interest there is for developnment in order
for those communities to survive. She said that it is just a
matter of being at the table and part of the discussion. She
added that municipalities and districts have never asked for or
requested veto power.

4:58: 37 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair O son adjourned the neeting at 4:58 p. m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -19- March 31, 2011



